

# Kurukh World Fellowship

[कुँडुख बेल्खा संगियारी]

## (Constitution)

This constitution consolidates and amends the rule of the “**Kurukh World Fellowship**”. The Constitution is framed to guide and regulate the functions of the fellowship and for its management. The Constitution has divided into two chapters; which are hereby specified as the following:

### Chapter 1

#### Preliminary

- (1) (1) **Name of the fellowship** is “Kurukh World Fellowship “abbreviated to KWF, and may be called as “KurukhWorld”.
- (2) “KurukhWorld” functions as an independent, voluntary and self-governing liberal fellowship. It has own constitution to run the fellowship. It has the power to amend its rules by the decision of the Managing Council under section (5).
- (3) This fellowship is and always shall remain only and solely a platform through which members may work harmoniously in teamwork with each other. Prompting the aim, objective and regulations set forth in this constitution.
- (4) Being International in character, the fellowship may work harmoniously with citizens from other countries throughout the world.
- (5) The head office of the fellowship shall remain/transferred in any place in India as resolution passed by the Managing Council. Visit this url to view our contact address:

[http://kurukhworld.com/contact\\_us.html](http://kurukhworld.com/contact_us.html)

#### (2) Specific aims and objectives:

- (1) To promote the advancement of social, ethical, moral and cultural standards of the members as well as to enhance the interest of the “Oroans”.
- (2) To promote solidarity, fraternity, self respect and dignity by developing spirit of friendship, brotherhood, co-operation, affection, and mutual harmony; and by enabling communication to enhance the quality of social life by helping to ensure deepen ties between the members.

- (3) To arrange/organize classes, competitions, exhibitions, symposia, seminar, conference, group discussions, cultural programmes and other lawful gathering for the promotions of Aims & Objects of the fellowship.
- (4) To translate, print, transmit, circulate and distribute appropriate material for useful knowledge through maintaining a website, and other means; such as - eBooks/ Books, pamphlets, leaflet photographs, journal, and periodical news letter devoted to the cause of fellowship; in addition to interest of Oroans.
- (5) To provide writing opportunity, encourage promulgation and intensification of writing spirit among Oroans; thus they work for the innovation and creativity of the Kurukh literacy.
- (6) To develop Kurukh language technology/tools/software to use in area of IT.
- (7) To come together in a platform and exchange views and ideas about the community, language, culture, affairs, events, news and much more by means of telephone, internet, letter, and print media.
- (8) To rise funds from the advertisements and deal of products by means of website as well as other media.
- (9) To receive subscription/dues, aid, requests, donations in connection to achieve any of the purposes of the fellowship.
- (10) All the incomes raised by the fellowship shall be solely utilized and applied towards the promotion of its aims and objects only; no amount shall be paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of profits or in any other manner whatever to the present or past members of the fellowship. No member of the fellowship shall have any personal claim on any properties of the fellowship or make any profits, whatever by virtue of this membership.

### **(3) Doctrine:**

- (1) In viewing of the modern age, area, country, religious faith, culture, job and economic status of us, it may be differences; but we all are offspring of the same ancestors, and thus we all are Oroans, and we must stay unified.
- (2) Ancestors religion, sacrament, culture and language are the admirable gifts and identity to us and given as paternal possessions.
- (3) We believe in “Dharmesh” who has made universe and the nature; he dwells in every element of the nature; he exists in the sun, and the green trees. Mountains, forests, seas and rivers show his glorious power, greatness & reverence. Sun is the symbol of God’s glorious power and brightness.
- (4) Whole Universe is regulated by a superpower that is “Dharmesh”, which simply points to the almighty God. The Khenkhel (the earth), Cando (the moon), and Biri (the Sun) are its representative divine powers, which are the prime source of super natural power.
- (5) We worship nature and believe that great consciousness or the God is nature itself.
- (6) Ancestors, we call them “Pachwa Aalar” are worshipped. Spirits of ancestors are called at our home for living with us, as we believe that they possess kind heart and divine power and do well for our family.

- (7) “Sarna” or sacred grove, a remnant of the old Saal forest in which ‘Chala Pachcho’, the village deity dwells. She is our protector; we worship her in the scared grove with the Saal flower for our safety and prosperous life.
- (8) Someone may deem difficult to believe, accept and adopt every primitive theology. They may do as their internal spirit says; but be familiar with or learning of our ancestor’s ritual, background, history and Kurukh language to pass ahead for future generation; which are the prime responsibilities of every Oroans.
- (9) Some of us follow Christianity; however our ancient background, life style, tradition, culture and speaking language are similar with the major stream, excluding sarnaism.
- (10) We believe in equality and respect fundamental rights to worship anything, everything or nothing as per individual own insight.

## Chapter 2

### Rules and Regulation

#### (4) Definitions:

- (1) *‘Independent, Voluntary and self-governing liberal fellowship’* means a group of people exit in fact, but not in law, thus not bounded/controlled by the government; accordingly it can’t sue or be sued in the name of fellowship.
- (2) *‘Managing Council’* means the ‘Executive Committee’.
- (3) *‘Advisory Council’* means a committee of the co-opted members/patrons by the President.
- (3) *‘Paid-up members’* means members who have paid their subscription under sub-section (1) of section (7).
- (4) *Matters* not covered in these rules shall be decided upon by the Managing Council.
- (5) *‘Patrons’* means honorable guests, visitors and financial/intellectual supporters, co-opted by the President.

#### (5) Alteration and Amendments

- (1) Fellowship may alter, abridge or extend aims, objectives and any of the rules of the constitution after consideration thereof, and proposition shall have been agreed by the three-fifth members of the Managing Council.
- (2) Fellowship may be registered under government acts any time; after alteration of the rules and regulations under (1) to get the minimum requirements set out in those acts.

#### (6) Membership

- (1) Those people are eligible for the membership, who have attained the age of maturity, fulfils the rule and regulations of this constitution without caring discrimination of members; such as gender, qualification, religion, creed, caste, color, area, nationality or personal circumstances. They shall voluntary subscribe and agree to be governed by its constitution.

- (2) All eligible people desirous of becoming members of the fellowship shall apply in writing on membership enrolment form or fill-up online registration form provided in our website to the President together with subscription fee under section [\(7\)](#).
- (3) Managing Council shall have the powers to expel/terminate a member from the membership of the fellowship on the following grounds:
  - (a) He/She is found guilty by the Managing Council by means of against the interests of the fellowship directly or indirectly.
  - (b) He/She is found to be involved in any anti-social activity, or adjudged by a competent court of law to be a criminal offender or unsound mind.
  - (c) His/Her written resignation to the Secretary.
  - (d) He/She fails to pay the subscription of membership for three months from the due date.
  - (e) His/Her death.
- (4) A member expelled/terminated from the membership shall have no right to enjoy the Right & Privileges mentioned in sub-section [\(4\)](#) of section (7). He shall not eligible to get back any refund from the fellowship.
- (5) The membership may be restored on written application/online request by the member concerned to Secretary for consideration, and he/she may be required to pay such sums for re-admission as maybe decided by the Managing Council.
- (6) All [terms and service conditions](#) to use our website, shall also be applied to members of the fellowship.

## **(7) Subscription & Dues**

- (1) Membership fee shall be charged from each member at the time of enrollment as under unless otherwise revised by the Executive Council:

Sr.No.	Membership Scheme	Fees	Membership period
1.	Bronze	Nil	Undefined
2.	Silver	100/-	One Year
3.	Gold	250/-	Three Years
4.	Platinum	400/-	Five Years
5.	Diamond	1200/	Life Time
Bronze Member - A member who doesn't pay the subscription; however he shall get free membership for undefined period of time. Silver Member - A member who pays membership fees for a period of one year. Gold Member - A member who pays membership fees for a period of 3 years. Platinum Member - A member who pays membership fees for a period of 5 years. Diamond Member - A member who pays one-time subscription for life time period.			

- (2) Re-admission fee of Rs. 50/- shall be charged with the subscription fee.
- (3) (a) Subscription shall be deposited directly in our A/c by internet transaction or at the subscriber's local branch of SBI. Then transaction date, reference, amount, name and address should be sent to us immediately for confirmation and farther process to enrollment.

(b) Subscription can be sent by crossed cheque/demand draft or money order, favoring name of Treasurer, payable at the place where residence of the treasurer shall sited.

(4) Right & Privileges of members.

- (a) They shall be entitled to participate in the meetings, cultural functions and other lawful gatherings arranged by the fellowship.
- (b) They shall have to get facility/access secured pages, member's area of the website, email id (with pop3 & smtp), web-hosting, eCards, database, eBooks, newsletters, journals and other information.
- (c) They shall have right to download language tools/software, eBooks mostly free of cost.
- (d) They shall have right to send articles/news/web-materials to put upload in the website.
- (e) They shall have right to know information, such as; member's details, funds and everyday expenditure etc.
- (f) Right & Privileges shall differ accordingly the membership subscribed.
- (g) They shall have right to be a candidate for the post of fellowship in the election under sub-section (3) of section (8).
- (h) They shall have the power to elect post bearers of the fellowship under the provision of sub-section (6) of section (8).

(5) Duties of members.

- (a) They shall elect the members of Managing Council using their vote, under provision of sub-section (6) of section (8).
- (b) They shall attend the General Council meeting that will be known as "Conference".
- (c) Give the necessary information pertaining to any matter which is necessary to be known by the fellowship.
- (d) Not indulge in activities which are harmful to the interest of the constitution of the fellowship.
- (e) They shall send their self written articles/materials as well as current affairs of their city/area to publish in our website and other means of media.

**(8) Election**

- (1) Office bearers/Executive members of the Managing Council shall be elected by the secret ballot papers or online voting system as the President/Election officer may decide. Office bearer/Executive members shall hold the office till the new persons elected. The office bearer/ Executive members of the Managing Council shall hold the office for a term of 4 years from the dates of their appointment and shall be eligible for re-appointment. An Office bearer/ Executive member of the Managing Council shall continue to be in office after the expiry of his term until his successor has been appointed. In case an Office bearer/ Executive member of the Managing Council resigns, dies, expel to be a member or vacates office, the vacancy may be filled by the Managing Council by nomination for the balance term.
- (2) The President will notify the election method (ballot or online voting), date, time, venue, etc. for the election to the members preferably two months before the expiry of the term of the present Council. President shall have the power to conduct election himself, or nominate a paid up member as an Election Officer to hold the forthcoming election.

- (3) A member seeking candidate to a post should be an Oroan as well a life member for the preceding four years from the date of election notification. Photo copy of caste certificate shall be compulsory with the application; else application shall be rejected without further notice. Nomination should be filed/proposed with a Proposer and a Seconder having paid up membership for the proceeding one year from the date of notification.
- (4) All posts, including executive members of the Managing Council shall be elected merely with the vote of life members. There is no provision to pay salary or payment to the post holders due to honorary/generous posts of the fellowship. Someone from Oroan caste shall be nominated by the President for Advisory Council under section sub-section (2) of section (9).
- (5) Withdrawal of nomination should be done 15 days before election.
- (6) Every life member shall have one vote to be exercised for the post of the Managing Council. No other members shall have right to cast votes in election.
- (7) Candidate getting highest of valid votes shall be proclaimed elected.
- (8) Members, whoever shall outer from Oroan Caste have not right to vote; and they can't get hold any of elected or opted post of the fellowship. Only they shall have right to get privileges and facilities under sub-section (4) of section (7).

## **(9) Various committees**

### **(1) Managing Council**

Functions and power:

- (a) There shall be a Managing Council at the place where head office shall be located under chair of the President. This will consist of President, Secretary, Treasurer, and Executive members. Executive members shall not be less than 3 (three) and not more than 7(seven). President, Secretary and Treasurer shall serve as the Directors of the fellowship.
- (b) All post holders/members of the Managing Council shall be elected by the vote of life members. The posts in the fellowship are on the honorary basis, there is no salary or payment to hold the post.
- (c) The Managing Council shall be responsible for the management, administration of the affairs and controlling of the policy.
- (d) The Council has all of the powers of the fellowship, unless the power is limited by the constitution of fellowship.
- (e) At least 10 days notice shall be given for a meeting of the Managing Council, but meeting may be called by the President without any notice in case of exigencies in a calendar month.
- (f) Managing Council shall meet as and when a meeting is convened by the President or is requisitioned by at least three members of the Managing Council provided. Normally it shall meet at least once in six calendar months.
- (g) Any members or the office bearers (authorized by Managing Council) shall execute all papers on behalf of the fellowship.
- (h) Managing Council shall formulate plans and programmes, make regulations, publishing and to propagate the system to approach the public pertaining to attainment of the aims and objects of the fellowship.

- (i) All the decisions shall be taken by the majority votes of the members of Managing Council. In the event of equal vote; the President shall have a casting vote that is a second vote to decide the issue.
- (j) In case an Office bearer/ Executive member of the Managing Council resigns, dies, ceases/expels to be a member or vacates office; the vacancy may be filled by the Managing Council by nomination for the balance term.

*Power and duties:*

(k) Power and duties of The President:

- i.* The President shall be the Head, Administrator and Overall In-Charge of the fellowship. He shall direct work of other office bearers of the fellowship.
- ii.* He shall preside in the meetings of Managing as well as General Council.
- iii.* The President shall have the power to nominate/opt one Editor for Website/Newsletter/Journal, one Web-Administrator, one Analyst and honorary 'Patrons', after discussing with the Secretary. Editor, Web-Administrator and Analyst shall be taken from paid-up members, honorary 'Patrons' from outside or internal members (who are our guests, visitors, and monetary or intellectual supporters). The President shall have the power to keep post of Editor, Web-Administrator or Analyst under his custody.
- iv.* He has the power to give notification for the election under provision in sub-section [\(2\)](#) of section (8).
- v.* In the course of any proceedings or meetings President shall have the power to take a decision that shall be considered as final in case of dispute as to the meaning or interpretation or any rule.
- vi.* The President shall have the power to cast an extra vote to decide the issue under clause [\(i\)](#).
- vii.* The President shall have the power to suspend or expel any member, who shall found guilty under provision of sub-section [\(3\)](#) of section (6).
- viii.* Any expenditure incurred by Secretary shall be approved by the President.

(m) Power and duties of the Secretary:

- i.* He/She shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the fellowship and shall exercise such control and perform all such duties as may be proper to his/her office and shall take all such actions as consistent with the aims and objects of the Fellowship.
- ii.* He/She shall arrange all records pertaining to the circular, meetings and functions, prepare the report, enroll a member or reject the application by notice of reasons. Minutes of all meetings shall also be recorded.
- iii.* Agenda, dates, venue etc. for the meetings/conference shall be drawn out by the Secretary in consultation with the President.
- iv.* He shall undertake all type of correspondence on behalf of the fellowship.

(n) Power and duties of Treasurer:

- i.* All the assets and funds of the fellowship shall remain under the care and under management of Treasurer.
- ii.* He/She shall be responsible for keeping and maintaining true and correct accounts, cash receipts, donations, paid or deposits on behalf of the fellowship.
- iii.* The Treasure will ordinarily hold a cash balance not exceeding of Rs. 500/-. All cash in excess of the above amount shall be deposited in any nationalized bank.

(o) Power and duties of Executive Members:

- i.* The Executive Members shall decide policy as well as all matters on the management lay down the broad outlines, supervise the interest of the fellowship.
- ii.* The Executive Members shall assist in formulating various activities of the fellowship. They shall keep the members informed on various developments and needs of the fellowship.
- iii.* Office bearer/ Executive members of Managing Council are bound to inform the fellowship in writing if anyone not able to attend any particular meeting or the meetings of the Managing Council.
- iv.* They will assist the routine work of the fellowship as directed by the President and Secretary.

(2) Advisory Council:

- (a) There shall be an Advisory Council consists of one Editor for Website/News Letters/Journals, one Web-Administrator, one Analyst, and Honorary Patrons. Honorary Patrons shall not be less than 3 (three) and not more than 7(seven). They all are nominated/appointed by the President with consultation of Secretary (see sub-clause [\(iii\)](#) of clause (k) of sub-section (1). Members of the Advisory Council shall have not need to organize meetings. However, they may be summoned with the written request to the President by at least 3/5<sup>th</sup> of the total strength of Advisory Council. Web-Administrator shall preside the gathering of the Advisory Council. In case of the President shall keep post of Web-Administrator under his custody; he shall take the same assignment. No salary or payments shall be paid to hold any post of the Advisory Council.

(b) Power and duties of Advisory Council:

- i.* Editor shall be the in charge of all works related with the compiling, editing, printing and dispatching Web-materials, News Letters and Journals.
- ii.* Website Administrator shall be the in charge of all works related with the compiling, editing, advertising, updating, designing and controlling the website.
- iii.* Analyst shall have the power to analyze over all work of the fellowship at the end of year, and submit report to the President.
- iv.* Members of the Advisory Council have the power to advice related with the funds, policies, activities, programmes, website and news/journals etc. They shall get in touch with the President/Secretary. Their precious advice shall be carried into effect after approval of the Managing Council.

(3) General Council:

- (a) There shall be a General Council under the chair of the President, consists of the all paid up members. General Council meeting will be known as “Conference” and held in two calendar years; if fund will be sufficient to systematize.
- (b) General nature of work and issues pertaining to the fellowship shall be discussed. And an annual report of the activities of the fellowship will be presented by the Secretary; and Treasurer shall present the accounts at the Conference.



(c) In case, insufficiency of funds conference shall not be able to organized. President shall upload agenda, reports etc to the members area of website five days before discussion (meeting). Then he shall call all paid-up members by email or telephone in an online secured discussion forum or chatting room in a particular time and date; then they all shall discuss the matters as provided in clause (b).

**(10) The quorum for all meetings**

The quorum for all meetings of all Council shall be 1/3rd of members. In case the quorum is not complete, the meeting should be adjourned for half an hour and the members present thereafter will be the quorum of the meeting.

**(11) Financial Year:** The account of the fellowship shall be prepared from 1st April to 31st March, every year.

**(12) Bank Account:** The bank account of the fellowship shall be operated by Treasurer or as decided by the Managing Council.

**(13) Audit:** The annual accounts of the fellowship shall be audited by a paid-up member or an auditor appointed by the President.

**(14) Registers:** The Society shall maintain a Register of Members and record the enrollment number, name, email, contact numbers, addresses , membership plane, date of expiration etc of all members for the time being and all changes in the membership which take place from time to time. The fellowship shall maintain a correct and true record of the proceedings of the Managing council as well as general council meetings. Treasurer shall maintain a register to maintain financial records.

**(15) Legal proceedings:**

The fellowship is acting as an independent, voluntary and self-governing liberal group of people, and not formed by the law; consequently may not apply to sue or be sued in the name of the fellowship. It is advised that a member should not be involved in any anti-constitution-activity or misuse the name of the fellowship; otherwise he/she will be fully responsible for any adjudged by a competent court of law to be a criminal offender.

**(16) Dissolution**

In case of needs, it shall be dissolved with the expressed wish for such dissolution by three-fifth votes of the paid up members. Any property what so ever shall not be distributed among the Members, but shall be given to the similar organization/society.

## Kurukh World Fellowship

Site: [www.kurukhworld.com](http://www.kurukhworld.com), Email: [kwf@kurukhworld.com](mailto:kwf@kurukhworld.com)

### Membership Enrolment Form

To

.....  
.....  
.....  
.....

Recent  
Photograph

Sir,

I .....desire to be enrolled as a member of the fellowship and shall abide by the rules and regulations of the constitution, I have paid enrolled fee and ..... membership fee. The membership fee of Rs.....is sent herewith by Internet Banking/Direct deposit/M.O./Demand Draft/Check No/Ref. ....  
Dated..... The particulars are given below :

1. Name in full: First Name ..... Middle Name .....  
Last Name .....
2. Email: .....
3. Contact: Mobile No ..... Telephone (Residence).....
4. Address: ..... City.....  
State/Region..... Pin..... Country.....
5. Gender: .....
6. Date of Birth: .....
7. Age: .....
8. Marital Status (Yes/No.): .....
9. Qualification: .....
10. Occupation: .....
11. Tribal Community: .....
12. Kurukh Speaking ability (Yes/No.).....

#### **For Office Use:**

Date Received .....

Date Approved .....

Enrolment No. ....

Date: .....

*Signature*

Note: Visit [www.kurukhworld.com/contact\\_us.html](http://www.kurukhworld.com/contact_us.html) for communication address.